
 
 

Ridgway Town Council 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Wednesday, May 8, 2019 

201 N. Railroad Street, Ridgway, Colorado 
 
 
 

 
5:30 p.m.  
 
ROLL CALL Councilors Robb Austin, Tessa Cheek, Ninah Hunter, Beth Lakin, Russ Meyer, 

Mayor Pro Tem Eric Johnson and Mayor John Clark 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
The Council will enter into a closed session pursuant to Colorado Revised Statutes 24-6-402(b) 
and (e) for conference with the Town Attorney for the purpose of receiving legal advice and to 
determine positions relative to matters subject to negotiations regarding signage and water utility 
improvements and operations.   
 

6:00 p.m.  
 
ADDITIONS & DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
ADOPTION OF CONSENT CALENDAR   All matters listed under the consent calendar are considered 

to be routine by the Town Council and enacted by one motion.  The Council has received and considered 
reports and recommendations prior to assigning consent calendar designations.  Copies of the reports are on 
file in the Town Clerk’s Office and are available to the public.  There will be no separate discussion on these 
items.  If discussion is requested, that item will be removed from the consent calendar and considered 
separately. 

 
1.   Minutes of the Regular Meeting of April 10, 2019. 
 
2.   Minutes of the Special Meeting held April 15, 2019. 
 
3.   Register of Demands for May 2019. 
 
4.   Renewal of restaurant liquor license for Oriental Chinese Restaurant. 
 
5.   Renewal of restaurant liquor license for Full Tilt Saloon.  
 
6.   Renewal of brew pub liquor license for Colorado Boy Pub & Brewery.  
 
7.   Renewal of hotel restaurant liquor license for Chipeta Sun Lodge.  
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS AND INTRODUCTIONS 
 
Thank you and congratulations to Dan Bartashius on retirement from 31 years of service to the 
Town.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS   Established time for the public to address the Council regarding any item not 

otherwise listed on the agenda.  Comments will be limited to 5 minutes per person. 
 

PUBLIC REQUESTS AND PRESENTATIONS   Public comments will be limited to 5 minutes per 

person; discussion of each item may be limited to 20 minutes. 
 



Town Council Agenda 
May 8, 2019 
Page 2 

 
 

8.       Request for proclamation declaring May to be Mental Health Awareness Week - Paul Reich, 
Tri-County Health Network.  

 
9.     Request for letter of support of the Single Family Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation 

Program and Support for the Ridgway Community Development Plan - Ute Janz, Delta 
Housing Authority. 

 
10.    Quarterly update from the Ridgway Area Chamber of Commerce - Hilary Lewkowitz, 

Mountain Roots Consulting.   
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS   Public comments will be limited to 5 minutes per person; hearings may be limited to 

20 minutes. 
 

11.  Application for Tavern Liquor License for Star Saloon; Applicant: Star Saloon LLC,  
shareholder: Adam Dubroff; Location: 373 Palomino Trail - Town Clerk.  

  
POLICY MATTERS   Public comments will be limited to 5 minutes per person; overall discussion of each 

item may be limited to 20 minutes. 

 
12.  Presentation of the Ridgway Master Plan - Town Planner and Community Initiatives   

Facilitator.  
 
13.     Request for renewal of ground lease for post office facility with United States Postal Service   

-  Town Manager.  
 
14.   Introduction of an Ordinance Amending Ordinance 2018-07 Which Prohibits the Use of 

Certain Plastic Bags, to Allow an Exemption for the Use of Small, Locking, Plastic Bags 
When Used to Seal Consumable Food Products - Town Manager.  

 
15.     Discussion of fees for carry out bags - Mayor Clark. 
 
16.   Resolution to Join Colorado Communities for Climate Action (CC4CA) and Support the    

CC4CA Policy Agenda - Town Manager.  
 
17.      Appointment of member to Ouray County Housing Advisory Committee - Mayor Clark.  
 
MANAGERS UPDATE 
   
Planning Commission Update 
Ouray County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan 
Task force for selection of artwork for Space to Create site 
Town Hall updates 
   
STAFF REPORT   Written report is provided for informational purposes prior to the meeting updating 

Council on various matters that may or may not warrant discussion and action. 

 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS   Informational verbal reports from Councilors pertaining to the 

following committees, commissions and organizations: 
 

Council Appointed Committees, Commissions, Task Forces: 
Ridgway Parks, Trails & Open Space Committee - Councilors Austin and Mayor Pro Tem Johnson 
Ridgway Planning Commission - Councilor Cheek and Mayor Clark 
Ridgway Creative District Creative Advocacy Team - Councilor Hunter 



Town Council Agenda 
May 8, 2019 
Page 3 

 
 

Ridgway Scholarship Committee - Mayor Pro Tem Johnson and Mayor Clark 
Council Board Appointments: 
Ouray County Weed Board - Councilor Lakin; alternate - Town Engineer 
Ouray County Joint Planning Board - Councilor Meyer, citizens Rod Fitzhugh & Tom McKenney; 

alternate-Mayor Pro Tem Johnson 
Sneffels Energy Board - Councilor Lakin and Public Works Services Administrator; alternate - 

Mayor Pro Tem Johnson 
Region 10 Board - Mayor Clark 
WestCO Dispatch Board - Town Marshal; alternate - Town Manager 
Gunnison Valley Transportation Planning Region - Town Manager; alternate - Public Works 

Services Administrator 
Ouray County Transit Committee - Public Works Services Administrator; alternate - Town Manager 
Ouray County Water Users Association - Councilor Meyer 
Council Participation and Liaisons: 
Chamber of Commerce - Councilmember Hunter 
Communities That Care Coalition - Mayor Clark 
Ouray County Fairgrounds - Councilor Austin 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Deadline for agenda items for next regular meeting, Wednesday, June 5, 2019 at 4:00 p.m., Town 
Clerk’s Office, 201 N. Railroad Street, Ridgway, Colorado. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

Consent Agenda 
 



 
RIDGWAY TOWN COUNCIL  

 
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 

 
APRIL 10, 2019 

 
 
OATHS OF OFFICE 
 
The Town Clerk administered the oath of office to recently elected Councilors Tessa Cheek, 
Ninah Hunter, Eric Johnson, Beth Lakin and Russ Meyer. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
The Mayor called the meeting to order at 5:35 p.m. in the Community Center at 201 N. Railroad 
Street, Ridgway, Colorado.  The Council was present in its entirety with Councilors Austin, Cheek, 
Hunter, Lakin, Meyer, Mayor Pro Tem Johnson and Mayor Clark in attendance.   
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

The Town Attorney requested entering into a closed session pursuant to Colorado Revised 
Statutes 24-6-402(b) and (e) for conference with the Town Attorney for the purpose of 
receiving legal advice and to determine positions relative to matters subject to negotiations 
regarding park improvements, signage and water utility operations within the Town.   

 
ACTION: 
 
It was moved by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, seconded by Councilor Meyer and unanimously carried 
to enter into closed session.  
 
The Council entered into executive session at 5:35 p.m. with the Town Attorney and Town 
Manager. 
 
The Council reconvened to open session at 6:00 p.m.  
 
The regular meeting began at 6:05 p.m.   
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1.   Minutes of the Regular Meeting of March 13, 2019. 
 
2.   Minutes of the Special Meeting held March 12, 2019. 
 
3.   Register of Demands for April 2019. 
 
4.   Renewal of tavern liquor license for Steps. 
 
ACTION: 
 
It was moved by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson and seconded by Councilmember Hunter to approve 
the consent agenda.  The motion carried unanimously.  
 
ACKNOWLEDGMENTS AND INTRODUCTIONS 
 
 Mayor Clark thanked Jacquie Mace for 28 years of dedicated service to the Town maintaining 

the public facilities.   
 



Town Council Minutes 
April 10, 2019 
Page 2 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
  Kuno Vollenweider expressed concerns with removal of snow from the “foot bridges” 

between Cottonwood Park and Moffat Street.  He also requested the Council address speed 
deterrents on Moffat Street, noting the two pedestrian foot bridges “don’t have stop signs to 
slow traffic down”.   

 
  There was a discussion by the Council regarding speed deterrents, and it was suggested 

staff and the Planning Commission review placement of stop signs on Moffat Street.  The 
Mayor asked staff to place as a priority the removal of snow from the pedestrian bridges.  

   
 PUBLIC REQUESTS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 
5.   Update on Ridgway Old West Fest  
 
 Eve Becker-Doyle presented an update on planning for the Ridgway Old West Fest to be held 

October 11 through 13.  She explained the purpose of the festival is to “highlight Ridgway’s 
film, ranching and railroad heritage; celebrate western arts and culture and commemorate fifty 
years since the release of the movie ‘True Grit’”.   She presented the many events planned 
during the festival, noting numerous venues will be used throughout Town, and the Railroad 
Museum will be holding a ‘railroad days’ during the festival.  Ms. Becker-Doyle requested 
exemption on sign regulations and ability to have an axe throwing event in Hartwell Park, and 
Council referred the requests to staff.  

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS    
 
6.   Application for Tavern Liquor License for The Patio at Steps Tavern 
 
 Staff Report from the Town Clerk dated 3-19-19 presenting a tavern liquor license application 

from Steps LLC for The Patio at Steps Tavern.  
 
 Town Clerk’s Notice of Public Hearing dated 3-14-19.  
 

The Town Clerk presented an application for a tavern liquor license from Daniel Easton, sole 
member of Steps LLC, to license 566 Sherman Street.  She noted the location which consists 
of a concrete slab, was formally licensed to a restaurant which served food and alcohol from 
an AirStream trailer. The proposed use will be comprised of a metal structure placed at the 
south west side of the slab, and hooked up to the water and sewer taps located on the 
property.  This structure will function as the serving area and storage, and will be accessible 
to staff only by one door from the west side of the building.  The complete premises will be 
fenced, with one public entrance from Sherman Street; and filled with tables, chairs and a 
number of shade structures.  She reported Steps LLC, and Mr. Easton currently hold a tavern 
liquor license issued by the Town in March of 2016, for Steps Tavern located on S. Cora 
Street.   

 
 Applicant Dan Easton addressed the Council and explained the business would be closed 

by 9:30 p.m., serve food and provide a “family friendly” atmosphere.  
 
SPEAKING FROM THE AUDIENCE: 
 
 Gene Elrich expressed concerns with noise from music which maybe played at the outdoor 

facility. He noted the licensed premises currently held by Mr. Easton can be noisy, and 
patrons “leave trash around”.  

 



Town Council Minutes 
April 10, 2019 
Page 3 
 

 Sharon Knowltan explained she resides adjacent to the site and does not feel it is “an 
appropriate location”. She stated this would be “primarily a drinking establishment and will 
be loud and my bedroom is 150 feet away”.  She expressed concerns with “after hours law 
enforcement” and “noise”; “no flush restrooms at the location” stating she does not feel use 
of  “a porta-pottie should be allowed, it is not appropriate for this use”, and noted concerns 
with smell. She stated “a vacant lot is not an appropriate use” for a bar.  

 
 Cody Monroe noted Eatery 66 operated at the same location, and “served out of a trailer”, 

“which is similar”.  He stated “Dan has owned and operated” Steps Tavern, and is a 
responsible business owner.  

 
 Christa Meyer supported “everything that has been said” and noted “Eatery also served 

alcohol and food”, and “had porta-potties and no problems”.  
 
 Sarah Smith explained she lives above Steps Tavern and “noise has never been an issue”.  

She expressed support for issuance of the license and the “9:30 p.m. time frame”.  
 
 Haley Niven supported the application, and noted she “misses having an eating 

establishment at this location”, and is “excited for another family friendly food area in Town”. 
She noted that “Dan is a responsible business owner”.  

 
 John Strandberg spoke in opposition noting “a tavern license only requires serving snacks 

and can stay open to 2:00 am per State law”.  He expressed concerns with noise; an “undue 
amount of licenses”; and the premises “may require more law enforcement”.  He noted many 
communities do not “allow outside bars” and encouraged the Council to direct staff to “look 
into code changes to not allow outdoor bars”.  He asked the Council to “take into 
consideration concerns from residents” when making the decision to license the premise and 
“encouraged” denial.    

 
 Angela Ferrelli spoke in support noting the business “will add value to the Town”.  
 
 The Mayor closed the public hearing.   
   
 The Town Clerk read into the record three letters received from Dale Laidlaw, Ethan and 

Melissa Cartwright and Tom McKenney in opposition to issuing the license.  
 
 There were questions to the Town Attorney from the Council, and comments by the Council.  
 
 The Mayor re-opened the public hearing and asked the applicant to come to the podium to 

answer questions from the Council.  Based on the questions Mr. Easton stated the music will 
be acoustic; the business will “close early”; he will look into constructing within a year a uni-
sex bathroom; there will be “rotating chefs to prepare a rotating menu” and food will be 
served; all lighting will be “down ward facing”; fencing will be “corrugated metal five feet in 
height” placed “all the way around” “so sound goes up and disburses” to address noise.  

 
 SPEAKING FROM THE AUDIENCE: 
 
 John Strandberg expressed concern with statements regarding serving of food, noting the 

license type “only needs to serve snacks”.  He asked the Council to look into code changes 
and “not permitting an outdoor bar like this again”.  

 
 Gene Ulrich expressed concerns stating “this is a bar and people go there to drink”.  
 
 Sharon Knowlton question the building permit process for the proposed use.  



Town Council Minutes 
April 10, 2019 
Page 4 
 

 
 There were questions from the Council to staff.  There was discussion by the Council.  
 
ACTION: 

 
Councilor Hunter moved, with Councilmember Lakin seconding to approve the application for 
liquor license to The Patio at Steps Tavern with conditions that the premise close by 9:30 p.m. 
and music is off by 9:00 p.m..  With the motion on the floor there were questions to the Town 
Attorney.  On a call for the vote the motion carried unanimously.  
 
 7.  Adoption of Ordinance Amending Chapters 3, 6, 7, 8, 10 and 11 of the Ridgway Municipal 

Code Regarding Fees for Sales Tax, Lodging Tax, Building Regulations, Planning and 
Zoning, Marijuana, Nuisances and Animals  

 
  Town Clerk’s Notice of Public Hearing dated 3-13-19. 
 
  Town Manager Coates explained the proposed ordinance updates fees in the Code 

pertaining to sales and lodging taxes; building code; subdivision regulations; Planning 
Commission applications; marijuana licensing.  She noted at the prior meeting Council asked 
to amend the draft ordinance to include the ability to lower or waive fees for affordable 
housing.  

 
SPEAKING FROM THE FLOOR: 
 
  Kuno Vollenweider spoke in opposition to increasing the fee for sales tax licenses. 
 
ACTION:  
 
It was moved by Councilor Meyer, seconded by Councilor Cheek and unanimously carried to 
adopt the Ordinance Amending Chapters 3, 6, 7, 8, 10 and 11 of the Ridgway Municipal Code 
Regarding Fees for Sales Tax, Lodging Tax, Building Regulations, Planning and Zoning, 
Marijuana, Nuisances and Animals. 
  
LAND USE MATTERS  
 
8.    Recommendation from the Planning Commission to approve an Amended Plat; Location: 

True Grit Subdivision, Lot A; Address: 109 N. Lena Street and 545 Sherman Street; Zoned: 
Historic Business (HB); Applicant and Owner: Nathan Worswick  

 
 Staff Report dated 4-10-19 from the Town Planner presenting a recommendation from the 

Planning Commission meeting of March 26th to approve the request for subdivision of Lot A 
of the True Grit Subdivision.  

 
 Notice of Public Hearing dated 3-27-19.  
 

Planner Coburn reported the request for plat amendment of Lot A of the True Grit Subdivision 
splits the property between two existing buildings creating Lots A1 and A2.  The Planning 
Commission found that criteria for the request had been met, and also approved two 
variances.  

 
ACTION: 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Johnson moved to approve the amended plat for the True Grit Subdivision.   
Councilor Meyer seconded the motion which carried unanimously.  



Town Council Minutes 
April 10, 2019 
Page 5 
 

 
POLICY MATTERS 
 
9.     Award of contract and approval of Professional Services Agreement for development of the 

stormwater master plan  
 
 Public Works Services Administrator Chase Jones reported the Council budgeted $175,000 

for a stormwater master plan.  The Town has received grant funding from the Department 
of Local Affairs in the amount of $87,500 for the project.  After advertising requests for 
proposals, four bids were received and three companies interviewed by staff.  Staff is 
recommending award of the contract to RESPECT in the amount of $175,000. 

 
ACTION: 
 
Councilor Austin moved to award the approval of a professional services agreement for 
preparation of a stormwater master plan to RESPECT company not to exceed $175,000, 
Councilor Lakin seconded, and the motion carried unanimously.  
 
10.    Review and ratification of the 2019 Capital Assessment Report   
 
 The Public Works Services Administrator presented a Capital Assessment Report prepared 

by SGM.  The report addresses current and proposed expansions to facilities, parks, streets 
and fleet vehicles.   

 
 There were questions from the Council. 
 
 Town Manager Coates noted items contained in the report will be presented to the Council 

during budget discussions for placement in the five and ten year capital improvement plans.  
The companion report addressing the water and wastewater systems will be presented next 
month. 

 
ACTION: 
 
Moved by Councilmember Hunter to ratify the 2019 Capital Assessment Report. Mayor Pro Tem 
Johnson seconded the motion, which carried unanimously.  
 
11.    Approval of option for ground lease with ArtSpace Projects Inc. for the Town owned property 

located on Lots 6 - 10, Block 28, for the Space to Create Project 
 
 The Town Manager reported at the previous meeting Council approved changes to a 

proposed agreement with ArtSpace for an option to lease the ground for the Space to Create 
Project. The agreement is necessary to complete an application due in June, for low income 
housing funds from the Colorado Housing and Finance Authority. She noted awards will be 
announced in September, and if the Town is unsuccessful, the application will be submitted 
for the next round of funding.   

 
ACTION: 
 
It was moved by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, seconded by Councilmember Cheek and unanimously 
carried to approve the option for ground lease with ArtSpace Projects, Inc.    
 
 
 
 



Town Council Minutes 
April 10, 2019 
Page 6 
 

12.   Approval of contract for purchase of dump truck  
 
 The Town Manager explained the Council budgeted $90,000 for a purchase of a used dump 

truck.  After an extensive search through out the nation, staff has located a used 2006 
Kenworth T800 dump truck in the state of Virginia.  The price is $93,750 due to delivery 
cost, and she requested deviation from the Town Procurement Policy to purchase the 
vehicle. 

 
ACTION: 
 
Councilor Hunter moved to approve the contract for purchase of a dump truck, Councilmember 
Lakin seconded, and the motion carried unanimously.  
 
13.    Discussion regarding Ouray County Housing Advisory/Authority Committee  
 
  Staff report from the Town Manager dated 4-5-19 presenting a background on the Ouray 

County Housing Authority/Advisory Committee.  
 
 Manager Coates explained on 11-8-18 the Council attended a joint meeting with the County 

and City of Ouray to receive a report from the housing advisory committee.  During 
discussions it was noted the Town was in the process of preparing an update to the Master 
Plan, including a new Housing Element.  It was agreed to meet again after completion of 
the document, and the meeting has been set for April 18th to discuss the future of the 
committee.   

 
 There was discussion by the Council pertaining to creation of a formal authority to address 

affordable housing, continuation of the committee in an advisory capacity, or disbanding the 
authority. It was noted the Town has already undertaken many measures, including a 
current project, to address affordable housing.   

 
 There was discussion between Council and staff.  Planner Coburn noted the Housing 

Element of the Master Plan will provide a framework for staff to follow, and a housing 
authority is not necessary.   

 
 Consensus of the Council was a housing authority, or advisory committee, is not needed at 

this time.  
 
14.    Follow up discussion regarding plastic bag prohibition and format for the forum on single 

use plastics  
 
 Mayor Clark noted the Council will be holding a forum on April 22nd to provide information to 

businesses on the new regulations pertaining to use of single use plastics.  There was 
discussion by the Council regarding format of the event which included information sharing 
and receiving feedback. 

 
15.    Update on staffing in the Marshals Department 
 
 The Town Manager presented updates to staffing in the Marshals Department, reporting on 

resignation of the Marshal and hiring of two new Deputy Marshals.   
 
16.    Discussion pertaining to requests for letters of support 
 
 Mayor Clark noted he receives many requests for letters of support, most of them regarding 

environmental issues.  It was noted letters of support are presented to the Council, and at 



Town Council Minutes 
April 10, 2019 
Page 7 
 

times the requested time frames do not meet the Council’s monthly meeting schedule.  
There was discussion by the Council and it was agreed all letters of support must be 
presented to the full Council, and if time frames are limited, then the request will have to be 
denied.  

 
17.    Invitation to join the Colorado Communities for Climate Action  
 
 Mayor Clark presented an invitation to join with other municipalities in the Colorado 

Communities for Climate Action (CC4CA) to jointly address items to be lobbied at the state 
level.   There was discussion by the Council.  

 
ACTION: 
 
Moved by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, seconded by Councilor Lakin to join the CC4CA for a base 
level annual dues of $1000.   On a call for the vote the motion carried unanimously.   
 
18.   Creation of a Youth Council  
 
 Mayor Clark suggested the Council explore forming a youth council, to get youth involved 

in local government.  The Council agreed to pursue the idea.   
 
19.   Annual appointment of Mayor Pro Tem and review of Council representation on 

commissions, committees and boards  
 
ACTION: 
 
Councilor Austin moved to appoint Eric Johnson Mayor Pro Tem. Councilor Hunter seconded the 
motion which carried unanimously.  

  
 The Council received a memo from the Town Clerk dated 3-29-19 presenting current Council 

representation on boards and committees.  The Council reviewed the list of appointments and 
agreed to remove Councilor Hunter from the Parks and Trails Committee; Councilor Cheek 
will serve as Council representative to the Town Planning Commission; Ouray County Weed 
Board, Councilor Lakin; Ouray County Joint Planning Board Councilmember Meyer; 
Councilmember Lakin and the Public Works Administrator will serve on the Sneffels Energy 
Board; the Public Works Administrator will also represent the Town on the Gunnison Valley 
Transportation Planning and Ouray County Transit Committee; Councilor Meyer will serve on 
the Ouray County Water Users Association; Councilor Austin will sit on the Ouray County 
Fairgrounds Board if the position is needed; staff will contact the Chamber of Commerce and 
if a liaison is needed from the Council, Councilmember Hunter will serve.  

 
TOWN MANAGERS REPORT 
 

Manager Coates reported on the Space to Create initiative; mailing of a community newsletter; 
water usage reports sent to utility users; CML legislation on single use plastics going to the 
state legislature in 2020; the upcoming CML conference; Single Use Plastics Forum on April 
22nd; meeting regarding master sign plan regulations; and broadband installation.   

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:45 p.m.  
 
 
 



Town Council Minutes 
April 10, 2019 
Page 8 
 

 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Pam Kraft, MMC 
Town Clerk  
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
  
 



 
RIDGWAY TOWN COUNCIL  

 
MINUTES OF SPECIAL MEETING 

 
APRIL 15, 2019 

 
 

The Town Council convened for a special meeting at 6:30 p.m. in the Ridgway Community 
Center at 201 N. Railroad Street, Ridgway, Colorado.  The Mayor called the meeting to order 
and in attendance were Councilors Austin, Hunter, Lakin, Meyer, Mayor Pro Tem Johnson 
and Mayor Clark.  Councilor Cheek was absent. 
 
Notice of Special Meeting dated April 12, 2019 to enter into executive session to discuss 
master sign plan regulations and in open session consider an ordinance repealing 
regulations in Municipal Code Section 7-3-12. 
 
The Town Attorney requested entering into a closed session pursuant to Colorado Revised 
Statutes 24-6-402(b) for conference with the Town Attorney for the purpose of receiving legal 
advice pertaining to Master Sign Plan Regulations.   
 
ACTION: 
 
It was moved by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, seconded by Councilor Lakin and unanimously 
carried to enter into closed session.  
 
The Council entered into executive session at 6:30 p.m. with the Town Attorney and Town 
Manager. 
 
The Council reconvened to open session at 6:50 p.m.  
 
There was discussion by the Council regarding the existing sign code regulations.  It was 
agreed to repeal the current master sign plan regulations and request the Planning 
Commission prepare a recommended plan for Council adoption. 
 
ACTION: 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Johnson moved to approve Emergency Ordinance 2019-03 an Emergency 
Ordinance Repealing and Amending Certain Portions of Section 7-3-12 of the Town of 
Ridgway Municipal Code Concerning Master Sign Plans within the Town of Ridgway,  
Councilor Lakin seconded the motion and it carried unanimously. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 

 
Pam Kraft, MMC 
Town Clerk 



Name Memo Account Paid Amount

CDC Janitorial Alpine-Operating Account

732PO1 · Supplies - community center -108.74
732POO · Supplies & Materials -108.74

TOTAL -217.48

UNCC Alpine-Operating Account

915WOO · Dues & memberships -32.66
915SOO · Dues & Memberships -32.66

TOTAL -65.32

Clarion Associates LLC Alpine-Operating Account

Mar 2019 513GOO · Planning Consulting -2,964.68

TOTAL -2,964.68

The Paper Clip LLC Alpine-Operating Account

531GOO · Community Outreach -16.82
531GOO · Community Outreach -58.35
941WOO · Office Supplies -46.61
941SOO · Office Supplies -46.60
841GO3 · Office Supplies -117.29
541GOO · Office Supplies -13.33
941WOO · Office Supplies -13.32

TOTAL -312.32

Ouray County Road & Bridge Alpine-Operating Account

Apr 2019 660GO2 · Gas & Oil -196.01
Apr 2019 760POO · Gas & Oil -52.30
Apr 2019 960WOO · Gas & Oil -294.17
Apr 2019 960SOO · Gas & Oil -207.49
Apr 2019 860GO3 · Gas & Oil -467.96

TOTAL -1,217.93

Stella Concrete Services, LLC Alpine-Operating Account

meter repair 931WOO · Maintenance & Repairs -300.00
sidewalk repair - Athletic 731POO · Maintenance & Repairs -300.00

TOTAL -600.00

Five Star Print & Promo Alpine-Operating Account

utility bills 941WOO · Office Supplies -301.34
utility bills 941SOO · Office Supplies -301.35

TOTAL -602.69

Econo Signs Alpine-Operating Account

ped. crossing (4) 639GO2 · Street Signs -475.00

TOTAL -475.00

Town of Ridgway
Register of Demands

May 2019

Page 1



Name Memo Account Paid Amount

Wilbur-Ellis Company LLC Alpine-Operating Account

chemicals 932WOO · Supplies & Materials -1,339.20
chemicals 932SOO · Supplies & Materials -334.80

TOTAL -1,674.00

Xerox Corporation Alpine-Operating Account

Mar 2019 948SOO · Office Equipment - Leases -28.00
Mar 2019 948WOO · Office Equipment - Leases -28.00
Mar 2019 548GOO · Office Equipment - Leases -248.31

TOTAL -304.31

Ridgway Area Chamber of Com... Alpine-Operating Account

receipts 2/1/19-3/31/19 529GOO · Tourism Promotion -5,311.22

TOTAL -5,311.22

UMB Bank, N.A. Alpine-Operating Account

interest 591GOO · BB&T Financing -16,840.50

TOTAL -16,840.50

Fishbone Graphics & Screen Pr... Alpine-Operating Account

t-shirts 781POO · Events & Festivals -1,425.50

TOTAL -1,425.50

Arborist Services LLC Alpine-Operating Account

2/27/19-2/28/19 767POO · Urban Forest Management -4,650.00

TOTAL -4,650.00

550 Publishing Inc Alpine-Operating Account

ad - seasonal parks 527GOO · Personnel - Recruitment/Testi... -52.25
540GOO · Printing & Publishing -63.51

TOTAL -115.76

True Value Alpine-Operating Account

632GO2 · Supplies & Materials -9.25
fertilizer 732POO · Supplies & Materials -1,510.74

732PO1 · Supplies - community center -113.05
733POO · Tools -1,152.85
861GO3 · Vehicle Maintanence & Repair -23.95
932SOO · Supplies & Materials -18.67
932WOO · Supplies & Materials -293.59

TOTAL -3,122.10

Town of Ridgway
Register of Demands

May 2019

Page 2



Name Memo Account Paid Amount

Quill.com Alpine-Operating Account

541GOO · Office Supplies -98.98
941WOO · Office Supplies -82.48

TOTAL -181.46

Galls Alpine-Operating Account

nameplate 883GO3 · Uniforms -24.23
shirts (10) 883GO3 · Uniforms -147.20
radio 2-way units (3) 832GO3 · Equipment & Supplies -138.24

TOTAL -309.67

Verizon Wireless Alpine-Operating Account

943WOO · Telephone -35.04

TOTAL -35.04

John Deere Financial Alpine-Operating Account

Barnes 934WOO · Safety Equipment -192.45
Barnes 934SOO · Safety Equipment -192.46

TOTAL -384.91

Black Hills Energy-Town Hall Alpine-Operating Account

742PO1 · Utilities - community center -48.71
842GO3 · Utilities -48.71
542GOO · Utilities -48.71

TOTAL -146.13

Black Hills Energy-Hartwell Park Alpine-Operating Account

742POO · Utilities -45.81

TOTAL -45.81

Black Hills Energy-PW Building Alpine-Operating Account

742POO · Utilities -30.97
642GO2 · Utilities -30.96
942SOO · Utilities -30.96
942WOO · Utilities -30.96

TOTAL -123.85

Black Hills Energy-Lift Station Alpine-Operating Account

942SOO · Utilities -27.49

TOTAL -27.49

Town of Ridgway
Register of Demands

May 2019

Page 3



Name Memo Account Paid Amount

Black Hills Energy-PW Office Alpine-Operating Account

642GO2 · Utilities -15.01
942SOO · Utilities -15.01
942WOO · Utilities -15.00

TOTAL -45.02

Deeply Digital LLC Alpine-Operating Account

license - Drew 556GOO · IT Services -28.00

TOTAL -28.00

Clear Networx, LLC Alpine-Operating Account

May 2019 543GOO · Telephone -56.00
May 2019 643GO2 · Telephone -56.00
May 2019 843GO3 · Telephone -56.00
May 2019 943WOO · Telephone -56.00
May 2019 943SOO · Telephone -56.00
May 2019 556GOO · IT Services -165.00
May 2019 615GO2 · IT Services -15.00
May 2019 729POO · IT -15.00
May 2019 820GO3 · IT Services -75.00
May 2019 917WOO · IT Services -15.00
May 2019 917SOO · IT Services -15.00
May 2019 917WOO · IT Services -50.00
May 2019 917SOO · IT Services -25.00
May 2019 615GO2 · IT Services -25.00
May 2019 843GO3 · Telephone -55.00

TOTAL -735.00

Walmart Alpine-Operating Account

732PO1 · Supplies - community center -45.18
732POO · Supplies & Materials -4.98
632GO2 · Supplies & Materials -1.95
932WOO · Supplies & Materials -1.95
932SOO · Supplies & Materials -1.95

TOTAL -56.01

Dahl of Montrose Alpine-Operating Account

hot wtr heater & expansion tank 731PO1 · Maint & Repairs - comm cntr -330.88

TOTAL -330.88

Town of Ridgway
Register of Demands

May 2019

Page 4



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #8 
 





 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #9 
 



From: Ute Jantz
To: Jennifer Coates
Subject: We need your support for our Housing Rehabilitation Program Grant Application 2020-2022
Date: Thursday, April 11, 2019 6:24:27 PM
Attachments: 2019 Draft Letter of Support for Rehab Program.docx

image001.png
2019 Community Development Plan.doc

Importance: High

Dear Jean,
 
The Housing Rehabilitation Program is a regionally based program that directly benefits the
citizens of your community by assisting low and moderate-income homeowners in
maintaining and repairing their homes.  This program is administered by the Colorado Division
of Housing (DOH) and delivered through Delta Housing Authority in the following counties:
Montrose, Gunnison, Hinsdale, Ouray, San Miguel, and Delta.  This program helps strengthen
your neighborhoods and community.
 
We are in the process of our grant application to the DOH (three-year grant) which requires,
letters of support and Community Development Plans. 
 
Financial Support:  We would welcome financial support in the amount $250.00 for each
completed project in their respective jurisdiction if in any way possible.  These funds help
cover extra administrative costs associated with travel to the work projects and other related
costs. 
 
In-Kind Support:  Please see the attached draft letter of support for the description of
suggested in-kind donations.  Note that several are relevant only if your community is
relatively distant from Delta. However, assistance with promotion, marketing and referral of
applications would be relevant and appreciated from all participating jurisdictions.  Please
consider supporting this program in a number of ways. 
 
Community Development Plans:  Attached please find a blank Community Development Plan
form (in Word).
 
Our Rehabilitation Loan Specialist, Stephanie Rapozo, is assisting me with the grant application
and she might be contacting you as well. 
 
We are looking forward to working with you and we greatly appreciate your support.  Please
return the documents to the Delta Housing Authority at your earliest convenience.
 
Sincerely,
 

Ute Jantz

mailto:director@deltahousingauthority.org
mailto:jcoates@town.ridgway.co.us

(Please put on City/Town Letterhead)



DRAFT LETTER OF SUPPORT





_______________, 2019







Ms. Jennifer Stapleton

Housing Development Specialist

Colorado Division of Housing

Department of Local Affairs



Re: 	Letter of Support for the Single-Family Owner-Occupied Housing Rehabilitation Program offered in Delta, Montrose, Ouray, Gunnison, Hinsdale, and San Miguel Counties



Dear Ms. Stapleton, 



[bookmark: _Hlk5802213]Please let this letter serve, not only as a demonstration of our local government support, but also of the communities we represent for the Delta Housing Authority (DHA) as a sub grantee in their application for a Single-Family Owner Occupied (SFOO) Rehabilitation Program grant.  



Please give favorable consideration to this grant application requesting another three years of funding (2020-2022) for this proven successful collaboration.  This program directly benefits the citizens of our community by maintaining the local housing stock and providing affordable assistance to households, which in return strengthens our neighborhoods and communities.



_____________ (Name of City/Town) will provide $250 per each completed project within their jurisdiction for a maximum of ___ projects per calendar year.  The financial support will help with travel and related administrative costs.  



[bookmark: _Hlk5871993]In additional support of this program, _____________ (Name of City/Town) is offering the following in-kind contributions: (Please check appropriate box)



 Promote and assist with marketing the Housing Rehabilitation Program by allowing marketing materials to be included with other public postings and in public places as appropriate (DHA will provide marketing materials).  This may include links to the Housing Rehabilitation website from the local community’s official website.  



 Provide limited clerical support on occasion such as access to copier, fax machine, telephone or others devices. 



 Furnish flyers and hard-copy program applications to local citizens if requested (documents will be provided by DHA). 



 Refer applicant inquiries to DHA. Fax completed applications to DHA.



 Include information regarding the Housing Rehabilitation Program during in-service staff training of related departments such as the Health Department, Department of Human Services, Building Department, etc. when applicable.  



 Provide a local contact person to assist with simple tasks on occasion.  For example: documenting basic progress on a project, taking pictures of project, recording documents with the County’s Clerk and Recorder’s Office (DHA covers the recording fee).   

			

 Other: _____________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________



We are offering our support once again, as this program continues to be a good match for the needs of our citizens.



Respectfully submitted,





_______________________

Name and Title of person signing the letter

Name of City/Town

[bookmark: _GoBack]

2




SUGGESTED FORMAT


(Applicant Name)



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN (as required under the "Small Cities" Community Development Block Grant Program)

		COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT & HOUSING NEEDS


(Including the needs of low and moderate income persons)

		ACTIVITIES TO BE UNDERTAKEN TO ADDRESS IDENTIFIED NEEDS


(Indicate the time period during which activities will be undertaken.  The minimum time period is one year.)



		

		





Signature of Chief Elected Official:












Title:








Date:




* Indicate the time period during which activities will be undertaken.  The minimum time period is one year.




Executive Director
 

501 14th Street
Delta, CO 81416
Phone 970-874-7266 ext. 8
TDD 800-545-1833
Fax 970-874-8612
www.deltahousingauthority.org
Equal Housing Opportunity             
 
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This Email message, including any attachments, is for the sole use of the
intended recipient and may contain confidential and privileged information or otherwise protected
by law. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the
intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply Email and destroy all copies of the original
message.
 

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__maps.google.com_-3Fq-3D501-2B14th-2BStreet-2B-250D-250A-2BDelta-2C-2BCO-2B81416-26entry-3Dgmail-26source-3Dg&d=DwMGaQ&c=udBTRvFvXC5Dhqg7UHpJlPps3mZ3LRxpb6__0PomBTQ&r=5MKPNqiWiMV4FRYz1r4CWx4rCGgWqwnFGZp2KHNqhZ2OaCDdeHnBMU8OCdny0k6F&m=CQk3B8OFOi4OEy7UGYMKnC-NZKEXmfcdrJr6nI4Wn14&s=auLZyebUTN8-Z9rObvSu9DGwI9wn3ViyXYLtB0NCCQI&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__maps.google.com_-3Fq-3D501-2B14th-2BStreet-2B-250D-250A-2BDelta-2C-2BCO-2B81416-26entry-3Dgmail-26source-3Dg&d=DwMGaQ&c=udBTRvFvXC5Dhqg7UHpJlPps3mZ3LRxpb6__0PomBTQ&r=5MKPNqiWiMV4FRYz1r4CWx4rCGgWqwnFGZp2KHNqhZ2OaCDdeHnBMU8OCdny0k6F&m=CQk3B8OFOi4OEy7UGYMKnC-NZKEXmfcdrJr6nI4Wn14&s=auLZyebUTN8-Z9rObvSu9DGwI9wn3ViyXYLtB0NCCQI&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.deltahousingauthority.org_&d=DwMGaQ&c=udBTRvFvXC5Dhqg7UHpJlPps3mZ3LRxpb6__0PomBTQ&r=5MKPNqiWiMV4FRYz1r4CWx4rCGgWqwnFGZp2KHNqhZ2OaCDdeHnBMU8OCdny0k6F&m=VrlzDIQxgBvUuc2FkZiq2xXMzs1d1rfsaj4JnIy7cmY&s=32M7QwEogpivqlCYBNuzH0m69svZXoAcwHyPoj3arUY&e=


    Housing Rehabilitation / Delta, Montrose, Gunnison, Hinsdale, Ouray and San Miguel County  
 501 14th Street • Delta, CO 81416 • 970-874-7266 ext. 3 
 

Housing Rehabilitation Report for Ouray County 
 
 

 2018 Projects 
Project amount $ Work Description 

5,000 New heating system, misc. repairs to 
porch, skirting 

5,000 Accessibility modifications, new floor 
coverings, new water heater 

12,000 Repairs to porch, stairs, ice mitigation, 
improve drainage near entrance and around 

foundation, replace damaged floor 
coverings, and door.  Remove hazardous 

tree. 
 

 

 Previous Projects 2014-2017 
Project amount$ Work Description 

5,000 Roof replacement 
5,000 Roof repair, interior repairs, accessibility 

modifications 
10,000 Roof replacement, skirting repairs, 
5,000 Roof replacement 
5,000 Roof replacement 

25,000 Roof repairs, new heating system, siding 
repairs, plumbing repairs, windows, 

painting, mold mitigation, new interior 
finishes. 

 



 

 

Town of Ridgway 
 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN (as required under the "Small Cities" Community Development Block Grant Program) 
 

 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT & HOUSING NEEDS 

(Including the needs of low and moderate income persons) 

 
ACTIVITIES TO BE UNDERTAKEN TO ADDRESS IDENTIFIED NEEDS 

(Indicate the time period during which activities will be undertaken.  The minimum 
time period is one year.) 

 
Affordable Rental Housing 
Affordable Ownership Housing  
Work / Live Opportunities 
Economic Opportunities 
Reasonable Cost of Living 

1) Participating in the State of Colorado Space to Create program to 
design and construct up to 28 affordable rental housing units in 
downtown Ridgway; 2016 - 2021 

2) Negotiating for deed restricted units and the terms of the deed 
restrictions during the Planned Unit Development (PUD) process, 
including: 10 affordable housing units constructed and sold in the River 
Park PUD, 6 affordable housing units in the Parkside PUD to be built, 
and the commitment of 9 additional affordable housing units in 3 
pending PUDs; ongoing 

3) Waiving excise taxes, building permit, and plan check fees for 
permanent deed restricted units; Waiving tap fees for ADUs and 
reducing monthly utility costs for ADUs; continuing to consider other 
possible cost reductions, such as deferred development fees, for 
permanently deed restricted units; 2019-2020 

4) Allowing for and promoting ADUs, including one plat amendment to 
allow for ADUs in the Parkside subdivision (at least 5 ADUs are built or 
in progress here). A total of 5 ADUs were built in 2017 and 5 more in 
2018 (from 2007 to 2016, only 1 or no ADUs had been built per year.); 
ongoing 

5) Developed a specific module for affordable housing strategies in our 
2018-2019 Master Plan, which prioritizes action items that are 
outcome-driven; 2018-2019 



 

 

6) Updated and distributed a Ouray County Housing Resources document 
in 2019 to share available housing resources within the county; ongoing 

7) Support the efforts of the Delta Housing Authority to manage the 
Housing Rehabilitation and Rental Rehabilitation Loan Programs for 
Ridgway and the county; ongoing 

8) Involved in creating and participating in the Ouray County Multi-
jurisdictional Housing Authority in 2007, now the Ouray County 
Housing Advisory Committee; ongoing 

 
 
 
Signature of Chief Elected Official: _____________________________________ Title: Mayor        Date: 

 
 
* Indicate the time period during which activities will be undertaken.  The minimum time period is one year. 

 



 

 

May 8, 2019 
 
Ms. Jennifer Stapleton 
Housing Development Specialist 
Colorado Division of Housing 
Department of Local Affairs 
 
Re:  Letter of Support for the Single-Family Owner-Occupied Housing Rehabilitation Program 

offered in Delta, Montrose, Ouray, Gunnison, Hinsdale, and San Miguel Counties 
 
Dear Ms. Stapleton,  
 
Please let this letter serve, not only as a demonstration of our local government support, but also of 
the communities we represent for the Delta Housing Authority (DHA) as a sub grantee in their 
application for a Single-Family Owner Occupied (SFOO) Rehabilitation Program grant.   
 
Please give favorable consideration to this grant application requesting another three years of 
funding (2020-2022) for this proven successful collaboration.  This program directly benefits the 
citizens of our community by maintaining the local housing stock and providing affordable assistance 
to households, which in return strengthens our neighborhoods and communities. It will be great to 
see qualified homes rehabilitated within the Town of Ridgway.  
 
The Town of Ridgway will provide $250 per each completed project within their jurisdiction for a 
maximum of 2 projects per calendar year.  The financial support will help with travel and related 
administrative costs.   
 
In additional support of this program, the Town of Ridgway is offering the following in-kind 
contributions:  
 
 Promote and assist with marketing the Housing Rehabilitation Program by allowing marketing 
materials to be included with other public postings and in public places as appropriate (DHA will 
provide marketing materials).  This may include links to the Housing Rehabilitation website from the 
local community’s official website.   

 
 Provide limited clerical support on occasion such as access to copier, fax machine, telephone or 
others devices.  

 
 Furnish flyers and hard-copy program applications to local citizens if requested (documents will 
be provided by DHA).  



 

 

 
 Refer applicant inquiries to DHA. Fax completed applications to DHA. 

 
 Include information regarding the Housing Rehabilitation Program during in-service staff training 
of related departments such as the Health Department, Department of Human Services, Building 
Department, etc. when applicable.   
 
 Provide a local contact person to assist with simple tasks on occasion.  For example: documenting 
basic progress on a project, taking pictures of project, recording documents with the County’s Clerk 
and Recorder’s Office (DHA covers the recording fee).    
    
 Other: _____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
We are offering our support once again, as this program continues to be a good match for the needs 
of our citizens. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Jen Coates, Town Manager 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #11 
 







 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #12 
 









•

•

•

•

•

•

•











•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•



•

•

•

•

•

•



•

•

•

•

•



•

•

•

•

•

•

•



•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•



•

•

•

•

•

•

•







•

•

•

•

•



•

•

•
–

–

–

–

–

•
–

–



•

•

•

•

•

•









•

•

•





 



 



 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

file:///C:/Users/cbrennan/Desktop/Phase%20III%20Draft%20Plan%20and%20Adoption/Ridgway%20MP_PublicReviewDraft022619.docx%23_Toc1934505


 



 



 







• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



• 

• 

• 

• 

 



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 



• 

• 



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



 



 



 



 



 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 



 



 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 



 



 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• 

• 



 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 





 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 



 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 



 





 



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



• 

• 

• 



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 



 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 



 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



 

• 

• 

• 



 

• 

• 



 



 



 



 



 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



• 

• 



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

























-

‐















 



 





 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #13 
 



 

 

To: Town Council 
From: Jen Coates, Town Manager 
Date: May 3, 2019 
 
RE: United States Postal Service Ground Lease 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND 
The USPS has leased this town-owned land for many years. The current ground lease was executed 
in December 2013 and expires May 1, 2019. The USPS owns the building on the property. At the last 
ground lease renewal in 2013, the USPS requested a decreased lease rate from approximately 
$10,000 per year to the current $8230 per year. 
 
 
STAFF REVIEW 
There are some changes in the proposed lease from the existing lease that was executed December 
3, 2013: 
 

1. The lease remains a 5-year term: 2019-2024 

2. The lease area remains at 7100 sq. ft. 

3. The legal description is modified from previous and does not look to be correct. I have 
reached out to the USPS for a corrected legal description.  
 

4. The USPS has proposed an increase in the lease rate from $8230 to $8542 annually (3.8% 
increase) beginning with this 2019-2024 lease agreement. 

 
5. The USPS has proposed an automatic renewal at the option of the USPS for two additional 5 

year terms, as follows: 
5/1/2024 – 4/30/2029: $9074 annual rent (6.23% increase) 
5/1/2029 – 4/30/2034: $9527 annual rent (4.99% increase) 

 The current lease (2014-2019) has no automatic renewal 
 

6. The lease area should look roughly like the polygon and aerial below 



 

 

 
7. The following Lease Addendum with annual appropriation language needs to be added: 

  SUBJECT TO ANNUAL APPROPRIATION AND BUDGET.    Landlord does not intend to create a 
multiple-fiscal year direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation whatsoever.  The 
performance of the obligations of the Landlord under this the Lease is subject to annual 
budgeting and appropriations. No provision of the Lease shall be construed or interpreted as 
a delegation of governmental powers by the Landlord, or as creating a multiple-fiscal year 
direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation whatsoever of the Landlord or statutory 
debt limitations, including, without limitation, Article X, Section 20 or Article XI, Section 6 of 
the Constitution of the State of Colorado.  No provision of the Lease shall be construed to 
pledge or to create a lien on any class or source of the Landlord’ funds.  























 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #14 
 



 

Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE NO. 2019 - 04 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF RIDGWAY, COLORADO, AMENDING 
ORDINANCE 2018-07, WHICH ORDINANCE PROHIBITS THE USE OF CERTAIN PLASTIC BAGS, TO 
ALLOW AN EXEMPTION FOR THE USE OF SMALL, LOCKING, PLASTIC BAGS WHEN USED TO CONTAIN 
AND SEAL CONSUMABLE FOOD PRODUCTS 

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Ridgway (the “Town”) is a legally created, established, organized 

and existing Colorado municipal corporation under the provisions of Article XX of the Constitution 
of the State of Colorado and the Home Rule Charter of the Town (the “Charter”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town is governed by its Home Rule Charter (“Charter”) as authorized by 
Article XX § 6 of the Colorado Constitution; and 

 
  WHEREAS, it is the purpose of the Town Council to attempt to protect the health, safety 
and welfare of its citizens; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the Town adopted Ordinance 2018-07 in December 2018 prohibiting the use of 
certain plastic bags and encouraging citizens to curtail their use of single-use plastics; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the Town Council desires to amend Ordinance 2018-07 for the purpose of 
exempting specific plastic bags.  
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF RIDGWAY, 
COLORADO, THAT: 
 

SECTION 1.  RECITALS.  
 
The foregoing recitals are hereby affirmed and incorporated herein by this reference as 

findings of the Town Council.    
 
SECTION 2.  AMENDMENT TO THE TOWN CODE CHAPTER 12, SECTION 3 BAG RESTRICTIONS.   
 
The following subsection shall be added to Chapter 12, Section 12-3-1(B) 
 

* * * 
 

(B) Disposable Plastic Bag means a bag made from non-compostable plastic provided by a 
Business to a customer at a point of sale or inside the business for the purpose of 
transporting goods.   

 



 

Page 2 of 3 

Disposable Plastic Bag does not include:    
 

(1) Newspaper bags, laundry/dry cleaning bags, or bags sold in packages 
containing multiple bags for uses such as food storage, garbage, pet waste 
or yard waste. 

(2) Small, locking, plastic bags when used to contain and seal consumable 
food products. 

 
* * * 

 
SECTION 2.  ORDINANCE EFFECT 

 
 All Ordinances of the Town, or parts thereof, inconsistent or in conflict with this Ordinance 
are hereby repealed, replaced and superseded to the extent only of such inconsistency or conflict.   
 

SECTION 3.  SEVERABILITY 
 

The Provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and the invalidity of any section, phrase, 
clause or portion of this Ordinance as determined by a court of competent jurisdiction shall not 
affect the validity or effectiveness of the remainder of this Ordinance.  
 

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 This Ordinance shall take effect 30 days after adoption.     
 

SECTION 5. PUBLIC HEARING. 
 
A public hearing on this Ordinance was held on the _____ day of ________________, 2019, 

in the Town Council Chambers, 201 N. Railroad Street, Ridgway, CO 81432. 
 
INTRODUCED, READ AND REFERRED to public hearing before the Town Council of the Town  

of Ridgway, Colorado, on the ______ day of __________________, 2019. 

 
TOWN OF RIDGWAY, COLORADO, A HOME 
RULE MUNICIPALITY 

 
 

      By:________________________________ 
       JOHN CLARK, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
PAM KRAFT, Town Clerk 



 

Page 3 of 3 

HEARD AND FINALLY ADOPTED by the Town Council of the Town of Ridgway, Colorado, this _____ 
day of ___________________, 2019. 
 
 
 

TOWN OF RIDGWAY, COLORADO, A HOME 
RULE MUNICIPALITY 

 
      By:________________________________ 

      JOHN CLARK, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
PAM KRAFT, Town Clerk 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
BO JAMES NERLIN, Town Attorney 







 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #15 
 



Adapted by the 

 

Model Ordinance Requiring a $0.05 Charge on Disposable Carryout Bags1 

AN ORDINANCE of the [insert name of jurisdiction]  
AMENDING [if ordinance is amended prior legislation, insert reference]  
 

Section 1. Findings and Purpose 

A. The [insert relevant legislative body] hereby finds and determines that data released by the United 
States Environmental Protection Agency shows that between 500 billion and one trillion plastic bags are 
consumed worldwide each year. The [relevant legislative body] further finds and determines that most 
plastic bags do not biodegrade; over time, the bags break down into smaller, more toxic petro-polymers 
which eventually contaminate soils and waterways. The [relevant legislative body] further finds that it is 
estimated that plastic bags account for over 10% of debris that washes up on our nation's coastlines. The 
[relevant legislative body] also finds that plastic bags can have a devastating effect on wildlife; birds can 
become entangled in the bags and different species of sea life can die from ingesting plastic bags which 
they mistake for food. The [relevant legislative body] further finds that plastic shopping bags are made 
from polyethylene, a thermoplastic made from oil. Accordingly, reducing the use of plastic bags will 
decrease our dependence on fossil fuels. The [relevant legislative body] finds that only 5% to 7% of plastic 
bags are recycled, in part due to the fact that it costs more to recycle a bag than to produce a new one. 
The [relevant legislative body] further finds that Americans consume more than 10 billion paper bags each 
year and 14 million trees are cut down yearly for the manufacturing of paper. The [relevant legislative 
body] also finds that paper production requires large amounts of water, energy, and chemicals and can 
emit toxic and hazardous chemicals into the air and water. The [relevant legislative body] further finds that 
the nation's paper industry generates more than 12 million tons of solid waste every year. The [relevant 
legislative body] finds that studies indicate that fees on carryout bags are effective in reducing the 
proliferation of paper and plastic bags and protecting the environment. The [relevant legislative body] 
concludes that in lieu of enacting a total ban of plastic bags, the [name of jurisdiction] should instead 
require stores to charge a fee of $0.05 on all carryout bags. If this approach fails to reduce the use of 
plastic bags by at least 75% in three years, the idea of an outright ban can be revisited at a later date. 

B. Therefore, the purpose of this ordinance is to encourage consumers in [name of jurisdiction] to use 
their own reusable bags for shopping by requiring not less than a charge of $0.05 on carryout bags that 
are provided at retail stores. 
 

Section 2. Definitions 

For the purposes of this ordinance, the following words shall have the following meanings:  

CARRYOUT BAG — Any bag that is provided by a covered store to a customer at the point of sale 
and is used to carry goods from such store; provided, however, that such term shall not include 
any of the following: 

A. A bag without handles used to carry produce, meats, poultry, fish, dairy, dry goods or 
other non-prepackaged food items to the point of sale within a covered store or to 
prevent such food items from coming into direct contact with other purchased items; 

                                                           
1
 Based on ordinances in Suffolk County, NY and Seattle, WA, and on the State of California law regulating single-use carryout bags. 

PSI developed this potential model based on actual legislation. The specific language used may not necessarily reflect the views of 

PSI, and no official endorsement should be inferred.  



Adapted by the 

 

B. A bag to hold prescription medication dispensed from a pharmacy; 

C. A nonhandled bag that is designed to be placed over articles of clothing on a hanger; or 

D. Any other bag exempted from the provisions of this ordinance. 

COVERED STORE — An establishment engaged in the retail sale of personal, consumer or 
household items, including but not limited to drug stores, pharmacies, grocery stores, 
supermarkets, convenience stores, food marts, apparel stores, home center and hardware 
stores, stationery and office supply stores, and food service establishments located within 
grocery stores, supermarkets, convenience stores or food marts, that provide carryout bags to 
customers in which to place purchased items. This term includes food service establishments or 
restaurants located outside of grocery stores, supermarkets, convenience stores or foodmarts. 

FOOD SERVICE ESTABLISHMENT — A place where prepared food is provided for individual 
portion service directly to a consumer, whether consumption occurs on or off the premises. 

RETAIL SALES — The transfer to a customer of goods in exchange for payment occurring in retail 
stores, sidewalk sales, farmers' markets and flea markets. The term "retail sales" does not 
include sales of goods at yard sales, tag sales, and other sales by residents at their homes. 

REUSABLE CARRYOUT BAG — A bag with stitched handles that is specifically designed and 
manufactured for multiple reuse, has a volume capacity of at least 15 liters, is machine 
washable or made from a material capable of being washed so as to be cleaned and disinfected 
at least 100 times. A reusable carryout bag is either: 

1) Made of cloth or other machine washable material, but not film plastic; or  

2) Made of durable plastic made of plastic other than polyethylene (HDPE, LDPE, PETE, 
etc.) or polyvinyl chloride that is durable, non-toxic, and generally considered a food-
grade material, that is capable of carrying 25 pounds over a distance of 300 feet for a 
minimum of 125 uses and at least 4 mils thick, measured according to the American 
Society of Testing and Materials (ASTM) Standard D6988-13. Reusable bags made of 
plastic must contain 40 percent minimum postconsumer recycled material, be 
recyclable in this [jurisdiction], and accepted for return to at-store recycling programs.   

Reusable carryout bags provided to customers pursuant to this ordinance shall be conspicuously 
labeled as reusable, and will not contain lead, cadmium, or any other toxic material that may 
pose a threat to public health. 

POSTCONSUMER RECYCLED MATERIAL — A material that would otherwise be destined for solid 
waste disposal, having completed its intended end use and product life cycle. Postconsumer 
recycled material does not include materials and byproducts generated from, and commonly 
reused within, an original manufacturing and fabrication process. 

RECYCLED PAPER BAG — A paper carryout bag provided by a store to a customer at the point of 
sale that meets all of the following requirements: 

1) Contains only post-consumer recycled fiber, and fiber from sources accredited by the 
Forest Stewardship Council or other independent certification organization, as approved 
by the [relevant official]. 



Adapted by the 

 

2) Is accepted for recycling in curbside programs in a majority of households that have 
access to curbside recycling programs in the [jurisdiction]. 

COMPOSTALBE – A material that fully breaks down into a stable product due to the action of 
bacteria in a controlled, aerobic commercial process that results in a material safe and desirable 
as a soil amendment. Compostable materials must be found to degrade satisfactorily at the 
composting facility receiving the material. 

 

Section 3. Carryout Bag Fee and Additional Obligations 

A. Covered stores shall charge a fee of not less than $0.05 for each carryout bag provided to any 
customer. All fees collected by a covered store under this ordinance shall be retained by the store.2 
Covered stores shall separately itemize the fee charged pursuant to this ordinance on the standard 
receipt provided to customers. 

B. A covered store shall not refund to the customer any part of the disposable bag fee, nor shall the store 
advertise or state to customers that any part of the fee will be refunded to the customer. 

C. No covered store shall charge a fee for, or prevent a customer from using, a carryout bag brought by 
the customer to such store to carry purchased goods from such store. A store shall not require a 
customer to use, purchase, or accept a carryout bag, recycled paper bag, or reusable bag as a condition 
of sale of any product. 

D. Paper carryout bags provided by covered stores to customers shall contain a minimum of 40% post-
consumer recycled content and be conspicuously labeled with the word “Recyclable” and the amount of 
post-consumer recycled content in a highly visible manner on the outside of the bag. 

E. No film bag that a covered store provides to customers to bag products in-store, as carryout bags, or 
for home delivery may be labeled with the term "biodegradable," "degradable," "decomposable," or any 
similar terms, or in any way imply that the product will break down, fragment, biodegrade, or 
decompose in a landfill or other environment. Disposable bags made of noncompostable plastic shall 
not be tinted green or brown. Any film bags meeting the definition of compostable that retail 
establishments provide to customers for food or other products, such as vegetables or bulk items 
bagged in stores prior to checkout, must be tinted green or brown and shall be clearly labeled 
“COMPOSTABLE,”  including language following the Federal Trade Commission’s “Green Guides.”  
Compostable bags must be separable from solid waste by the generator or during collection for the 
purpose of composting in [name of jurisdiction]. 

F. A covered store shall not charge for a reusable bag that is distributed to a customer without charge 
during a limited duration promotional event, not to exceed 12 days per year. A store may provide a 
reusable bag or a recycled paper bag at no cost at the point of sale to a customer receiving 
[supplemental food assistance, WIC and other public assistance programs, as applicable in relevant 
state/jurisdiction]. 

 

                                                           
2
 In some states, local governments are not permitted to collect moneys from charges on single-use carryout bags. 

Others choose not to collect the moneys to avoid complaints that the fee is a tax. To cover such situations for the 
purposes of this model, we have used language that allows stores to retain the full amount.  
In other states, governments collect all or a portion of the moneys generated by the charge. In these cases, the 
moneys are used to mitigate the impacts of disposable bags, or for other environmental programs. See “Model Fee 
on Disposable Bags – 10 cents” for sample language. 

jennifercoates
Highlight



Adapted by the 

 

Section 4. Reporting 

No later than [Month date, year], and annually thereafter, the [relevant official], and the head of any 
other department or office designated by [relevant legislative body], shall prepare an annual recycling 
report that includes information on the progress of single-use carryout bag reduction, including, but not 
limited to:  

A. The general effectiveness of this ordinance in reducing the use of single-use carryout bags in 
the [jurisdiction] and increasing the use of reusable carryout bags; 

B. The waste- and litter-reduction benefits of this ordinance, including, where practicable, the 
amount of single-use plastic bags in the waste stream; 

C. The number of notices of violation issued pursuant to this ordinance; and 

D. Any cost savings for the [jurisdiction] attributable to single-use carryout bag reduction, such as 
reduced contamination of local waterways or reduction in flooding or combined sewer overflows. 

 

SECTION 5. Deduction from Employee Wages Prohibited 

Covered stores are prohibited from making a charge against, or deduction from, the wages of an 
employee to offset any penalty addressed against the covered store pursuant to this ordinance. It shall 
be a violation of this ordinance for any store to penalize, discipline, or discriminate against any 
employee for performing any duty necessary to comply with the ordinance. 
 

SECTION 6. Outreach and Implementation 

Every store subject to the collection of the disposable bag fee shall display a sign in a location outside or 
inside of the business, viewable by customers, alerting customers to the disposable bag fee.  

The [relevant department]’s responsibilities for implementing this ordinance include conducting outreach 
to stores, providing multi-lingual information to educate store employees and customers, and making 
available lists of vendors who sell recycled paper, or reusable bags. The [relevant official], after a public 
hearing, may adopt and may amend guidelines, rules, regulations and forms to implement this ordinance. 

To further promote the use of reusable shopping bags and reduce the quantity of single-use carryout 
bags entering the [jurisdiction]'s waste stream, the [relevant department] is authorized to make 
reusable carryout bags available to the public at low cost or free-of-charge, targeting such programs to 
reach low-income households to the greatest degree possible. 

 

SECTION 7. Enforcement and Penalties 

This ordinance shall be enforced by the [relevant department] in accordance with the provisions of 
[insert reference to pertinent code]. The [relevant official] is hereby authorized and empowered to 
promulgate rules and regulations necessary to enforce this ordinance. 

Any violation of this ordinance shall be punishable by a civil fine of $500 for each. 
 

SECTION 8. Reverse Preemption 

This ordinance shall be null and void on the day that statewide or federal legislation goes into effect 
incorporating either the same or substantially similar provisions as are contained in this ordinance, or in 
the event that a pertinent state or federal administrative agency issues and promulgates regulations 



Adapted by the 

 

preempting such action by the [name of jurisdiction]. The [relevant legislative body] may determine via 
mere resolution whether or not identical or substantially similar statewide legislation has been enacted 
for the purposes of triggering the provisions of this section. 
 

SECTION 9. Severability 

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason held invalid or 
unconstitutional by the decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, then such provision shall be 
considered separately and apart from the remaining provisions of this ordinance. Such decision shall not 
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance, which shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

SECTION 10. Effective Date 

This ordinance shall take effect on [Month date, year]. In the event that compliance with the effective date 
of this ordinance is not feasible for a store because of economic hardship, the [relevant department] may 
grant a waiver of not more than six months upon application of the owner or the owner’s representative. 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #16 
 



 

RESOLUTION NO. 19-09 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF RIDGWAY TOWN COUNCIL TO JOIN COLORADO COMMUNITIES 

FOR CLIMATE ACTION (CC4CA) AND SUPPORT THE CC4CA POLICY AGENDA 
 
WHEREAS, the Ridgway Town Council adopted a Strategy & Action Plan in 2011 to guide multi-
jurisdictional energy action planning and to provide a framework to facilitate streamlined, inter-
entity collaboration in our region’s efforts to effectively manage energy resources, reduce 
energy costs and meet energy, transportation fuel, water, and waste reduction goals; and  
 
WHEREAS, a number of strategies in the Strategy & Action Plan address greenhouse gases and 
climate change, including strategies related to energy, transportation, waste and water; and 
 
WHEREAS the Ridgway Town Council recognizes the relationship of energy production and use 
to climate change; and 
 
WHEREAS, Colorado Communities for Climate Action (CC4CA) has been established to further 
the adoption of federal and state policies that will provide local governments in Colorado with 
the tools, funding, flexibility, and authority necessary to adopt effective climate protection 
strategies; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Ridgway desires to support regional cooperation through participation 
in the development of statewide energy and greenhouse gas reduction policies; and 
 
WHEREAS, on April 2019 the Town Council voted unanimously to join CC4CA in 2019 with a 
membership contribution of $1000.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF RIDGWAY 
HEREBY THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF RIDGWAY, COLORADO will join the Colorado 
Communities for Climate Action with a base annual membership for a period of one year, and the 
Town of Ridgway supports CC4CA’s Policy Agenda. 
 
INTRODUCED, READ, PASSED, AND ADOPTED THIS ____ DAY OF ____________, 2019. 
 

TOWN OF RIDGWAY, COLORADO 
 
 

By: ________________________________ 
               JOHN CLARK, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 
       PAM KRAFT, Town Clerk 



CC4CA	Policy	Agenda	2018-2019	
	
Colorado	Communities	for	Climate	Action	is	a	coalition	of	local	governments	
advocating	for	policies	that	protect	Colorado’s	climate	for	current	and	future	
generations.	CC4CA’s	policy	priorities	for	2018-2019	reflect	unanimous	agreement	
among	the	coalition	members	on	steps	that	should	be	taken	at	the	state	and	federal	
level,	often	in	partnership	with	local	governments,	to	enable	Colorado	and	its	
communities	to	lead	in	protecting	the	climate.	These	steps	would	complement	the	
strong	local	climate	actions	CC4CA	members	already	have	underway.		
	

General	Policy	Principles	
	
These	general	principles	guide	the	specific	policies	for	which	Colorado	Communities	
for	Climate	Action	advocates:		
	
CC4CA	supports	collaboration	between	state	and	federal	government	agencies	and	
Colorado’s	local	governments	to	advance	local	climate	protection.		
	
CC4CA	supports	state	and	federal	programs	to	reduce	carbon	pollution,	including	
adequate	and	ongoing	funding	of	those	programs.			
	
CC4CA	supports	analyses,	financial	incentives,	and	enabling	policies	for	the	
development	and	deployment	of	clean	energy	technologies.		
	
CC4CA	supports	locally	driven,	locally	designed	programs	to	support	communities	
impacted	by	the	clean	energy	transformation.	
	

Policy	Positions	
	
Colorado	Communities	for	Climate	Action	supports	the	following	policy	positions:	
	

Local	Climate	Programs	
	

1.	Supports	state-level	actions	to	remove	barriers	and	promote	opportunities	
that	allow	counties	and	municipalities	to	maximize	the	deployment	of	local	
clean	energy	options.	
	
The	deployment	of	local	energy	generation	and	technology	will	continue	to	be	a	
critical	component	of	Colorado	communities’	climate	efforts.	In	many	cases,	
regulatory	or	legislative	limitations	exist	that	will	need	to	be	removed	for	
communities	to	fully	explore	new	local	program	options	and	technologies	that	can	
effectively	reduce	fossil	fuel	use,	increase	energy	resilience,	and	support	community	
values	related	to	climate	protection.	For	example,	the	integration	of	local	renewable	
energy,	storage	technologies,	and	microgrids	all	support	a	local	jurisdiction’s	ability	
to	address	the	supply	side	of	energy-related	emissions.		



2	
	

	
2.	Supports	requiring	local	governments	with	adopted	building	codes	to	
include	the	most	current	or	appropriate	International	Energy	Conservation	
Code,	or	provisions	substantially	similar	to	it,	in	their	building	codes	and	to	
develop	a	process	for	updating	the	energy	code	on	a	regular	basis.	
	
More	than	40	percent	of	the	energy	consumed	in	the	United	States	is	tied	to	the	use	
of	buildings.	Building	codes,	consequently,	are	among	the	most	powerful	tools	
available	for	reducing	carbon	pollution	(and,	not	incidentally,	saving	money	in	both	
residential	and	commercial	buildings).	For	instance,	the	Southwest	Energy	
Efficiency	Project	estimates	the	incremental	cost	for	constructing	a	new	home	to	
meet	the	2015	IECC	versus	the	2006	IECC	is	about	$2,400;	with	annual	energy	
savings	of	$390,	this	efficiency	upgrade	results	in	a	six-year	simple	payback.	
	
While	some	jurisdictions	across	Colorado	are	keeping	up	with	changes	to	the	
International	Energy	Conservation	Code,	many	communities	have	not	done	so.	
CC4CA	supports	the	adoption	of	the	most	current	IECC	or	amendments	to	older	
codes	that	have	comparable	energy	efficiency	and	consumption	impacts.		
	
3.	Supports	state	government	actions	to	enable	local	governments	to	obtain	
the	energy	use	and	other	data	they	need	to	effectively	address	climate	change.		
	
Local	governments	need	convenient	and	consistent	access	to	data	that	is	essential	
for	developing	and	administering	local	programs	that	address	clean	and	efficient	
energy	and	reductions	in	heat-trapping	emissions.	For	example,	access	to	uniform	
data	from	electric	and	gas	utilities	is	critical	for	implementing	building	energy	use	
disclosure	and	benchmarking	programs	designed	to	make	sure	building	owners,	
tenants,	and	others	can	be	fully	informed	about	energy	performance.	Local	
governments	also	struggle	to	get	consistent	data	regarding	waste	collection	and	
disposal,	oil	and	gas	operations,	and	other	sources	of	heat-trapping	emissions.	
CC4CA	supports	state	government	actions	and	policies	that	lead	to	uniform	systems	
for	collection	and	distribution	of	data	from	investor-owned	and	public	utilities	that	
is	easily	accessible	to	local	governments,	while	still	protective	of	data	privacy	for	
residents	and	businesses.		
	

State	Climate-Specific	Programs	
	
4.	Supports	statutory	codification	of	aggressive	and	enforceable	goals	to	
reduce	net	statewide	heat-trapping	emissions,	including	the	goal	of	reducing	
emissions	by	more	than	26	percent	by	2025,	compared	to	2005	levels,	as	
established	by	Governor	John	Hickenlooper	through	executive	order,	and	
including	a	further	goal	of	reducing	emissions	by	at	least	80	percent	by	2050,	
compared	to	2005	levels.	
	
In	July	2017,	Governor	Hickenlooper	issued	Executive	Order	D	2017-015.	Among	
other	provisions,	it	set	an	official	state	goal	of	reducing	statewide	carbon	pollution	



3	
	

by	more	than	26	percent	by	2025,	compared	to	2005	levels.	CC4CA	applauded	the	
governor	for	his	action,	which	provides	an	essential	framework	for	shaping	climate	
protection	actions	in	Colorado.	Meeting	this	goal	would	mean	that	Colorado	
achieved	its	share	of	the	national	commitment	the	United	States	made	under	the	
Paris	Agreement.		
	
CC4CA	also	supports	an	additional	goal	of	reducing	emissions	by	at	least	80	percent	
by	2050,	building	on	the	goal	established	in	2008	by	then-governor	Bill	Ritter,	Jr.	in	
Executive	Order	D	004	08.	Meeting	this	goal	would	mean	that	Colorado	achieved	its	
share	of	the	global	emission	reductions	scientists	say	must	be	achieved	or	exceeded	
to	protect	the	climate	from	dangerous	human	interference.		
	
CC4CA	supports	the	codification	of	the	state’s	emission	reduction	goals	in	statute,	as	
other	states	have	done,	so	that	they	remain	the	cornerstone	of	state	climate	
protection	actions	over	time,	including	following	transitions	from	one	governor	to	
another.		
	
5.	Supports	legislative,	regulatory,	and	administrative	actions	by	the	Colorado	
state	government	to	achieve	the	state’s	emission	reduction	goals	and	to	
implement	the	Colorado	Climate	Plan,	and	requests	an	opportunity	for	
meaningful,	sustained	engagement	by	CC4CA	in	developing	those	specific	
steps.	
	
In	order	to	meet	the	emission	reduction	goals	established	by	Governor	
Hickenlooper	and	to	implement	the	governor’s	2015	Colorado	Climate	Plan,	the	
state	will	need	to	take	additional	action.	The	Colorado	Climate	Plan	is	a	high-level	
overview	document	of	state	actions	for	adapting	to	future	climate	change	impacts	
and	reducing	carbon	pollution.	CC4CA	believes	it	essential	that	the	state	government	
provide	an	opportunity	for	meaningful,	sustained	collaboration	with	local	
governments	in	developing	specific	climate	actions	tied	to	this	climate	plan,	and	
proposes	that	representatives	of	CC4CA	be	included	in	that	process.	Following	the	
July	2017	release	of	Governor	Hickenlooper’s	executive	order,	CC4CA	initiated	a	
letter	to	the	governor	through	which	75	local	elected	officials	expressed	support	for	
the	executive	order	and	its	goals	and	stated	their	readiness	and	willingness	to	help	
his	administration	shape	and	implement	concrete,	measurable	actions	that	will	be	
needed	to	meet	these	goals.		
	
6.	Supports	the	development	of	a	new	forecast	of	future	heat-trapping	
emissions	reflecting	Colorado	laws	and	Colorado-specific	information	by	the	
Colorado	Department	of	Public	Health	and	Environment,	with	input	from	local	
government	and	other	stakeholders.	
	
The	“Colorado	Greenhouse	Gas	Inventory:	2014	Update	Including	Projections	to	
2020	&	2030,”	prepared	by	the	Colorado	Department	of	Public	Health	and	
Environment,	includes	a	forecast	of	statewide	emissions	that	utilizes	federal	
Environmental	Protection	Agency	nationwide	assumptions	about	future	emissions	



4	
	

policies.	As	a	result,	the	inventory	does	not	reflect	currently	adopted	Colorado	laws	
and	policies,	such	as	our	Renewable	Energy	Standard.	Without	this	information,	it	is	
impossible	to	ascertain	what	progress	Colorado	is	making	(or	not)	in	its	effort	to	
reduce	carbon	pollution.	CC4CA	in	July	2017	sent	a	letter	to	CDPHE	recommending	
the	development	of	a	new	Colorado	inventory	of	greenhouse	gas	emissions	that	
incorporates	existing	Colorado	law	and	policy	in	order	to	more	accurately	track	the	
state’s	progress	in	achieving	its	emissions	reduction	goals,	and	will	continue	
working	for	that	action.	
	
7.	Supports	a	comprehensive	market-based	policy	to	reduce	Colorado’s	heat-
trapping	emissions.	
	
Climate	change	is	considered	a	market	failure	by	economists	because	it	imposes	
huge	costs	on	society—so-called	external	costs—that	are	not	normally	reflected	in	
the	prices	of	the	goods	and	services	causing	the	cost.	To	overcome	this	market	
failure,	CC4CA	supports	an	effort	to	internalize	the	costs	by	putting	a	price	on	heat-
trapping	emissions	and	allowing	that	price	to	help	drive	emission	reductions.	Such	a	
market-based	approach	could	be	undertaken	at	national,	regional,	or	state	levels,	
and	could	take	different	forms.	One	approach	would	be	a	tax	on	greenhouse	gas	
emissions.	Another	would	be	a	cap-and-trade	program	that	allows	trading	of	limited	
emission	rights	that	are	sold	and	then	could	be	traded	to	achieve	economically	
efficient	emission	reductions.	Examples	include	the	Regional	Greenhouse	Gas	
Initiative	covering	ten	northeastern	U.S.	states	and	California’s	statewide	cap-and-
trade	program.		
	

Electricity	Generation	
	
8.	Supports	concrete	state	government	actions	to	reduce	emissions	from	the	
electricity	sector	in	Colorado	by	at	least	25	percent	by	2025	and	at	least	35	
percent	by	2030,	compared	to	2012	levels,	consistent	with	the	goals	
established	by	Governor	John	Hickenlooper	through	executive	order.	
	
Executive	Order	D	2017-015	established	new	state	goals	for	reducing	emissions	
from	the	electricity	sector	that	are	consistent	with	what	Colorado	was	considering	
to	comply	with	the	U.S.	Environmental	Protection	Agency’s	Clean	Power	Plan	under	
the	Obama	administration.	CC4CA	believes	that	greater	emission	reductions	are	
possible	than	called	for	in	the	executive	order	and	that	further	reductions	are	
needed	into	mid-century,	especially	given	the	more	ambitious	targets	that	Xcel	
Energy	has	identified	as	achievable	in	its	Colorado	Energy	Plan	currently	under	
consideration	by	the	Public	Utilities	Commission.	CC4CA	supports	concrete	actions	
by	the	Colorado	Public	Utilities	Commission	and	the	Colorado	Department	of	Public	
Health	and	Environment	to	ensure	that	we	achieve	and	exceed	these	goals.		
	
9.	Supports	the	accelerated	retirement	of	existing	fossil	fuel	based	generation	
facilities	and	their	replacement	with	cost-effective	and	reliable	clean	energy	
supplies,	through	means	that	protect	both	utilities	and	consumers.	



5	
	

	
CC4CA	supports	actions	in	Colorado	to	enable	the	early	retirement	of	fossil	fuel-
based	power	plants	and	their	replacement	with	clean	energy	sources,	while	
protecting	the	economic	interests	of	both	the	utilities	owning	the	power	plants	and	
electricity	customers.		
	
CC4CA	has	previously	supported	legislation	to	allow	refinancing	of	older,	less	
efficient	power	plants,	by	way	of	ratepayer-backed	bonding,	that	could	make	it	
possible	to	retire	those	plants	in	favor	of	newer,	cleaner	sources	while	protecting	
the	economic	interests	of	both	utilities	and	consumers.	In	August	2017,	Xcel	Energy	
and	more	than	a	dozen	other	entities	(including	the	City	of	Boulder,	a	CC4CA	
member)	announced	an	agreement	to	seek	approval	from	the	Public	Utilities	
Commission	of	a	proposal	to	retire	two	old,	coal-fired	generators	at	the	Comanche	
power	plant	in	Pueblo,	to	be	replaced	with	newer	energy	sources	with	lower	(or	no)	
heat-trapping	emissions.	The	coalition	said	the	proposal	is	predicated	on	the	cost	of	
the	new	energy	sources	meeting	or	beating	the	current	cost	of	power	from	the	
power	plants	to	be	retired.		
	
Across	the	nation,	the	generation	of	electricity	is	rapidly	shifting	from	coal-fired	
power	plants	to	less	polluting	plants,	driven	primarily	by	economic	forces	but	
sometimes	also	by	governmental	policies	and	actions,	from	climate	action	plans	to	
new	authority	for	refinancing	existing	plants.	The	shift	to	cleaner	electricity	
generation	is	driving	down	greenhouse	gas	emissions	from	that	sector	and	holding	
down	overall	national	emissions.		
	
10.	Supports	expanded	ability	of	electric	cooperatives	to	independently	
purchase	local	renewable	electricity.	
	
Tri-State	Generation	and	Transmission	Association	has	tried	to	prevent	its	customer	
electric	cooperatives	from	purchasing	electricity	generated	from	local	renewable	
sources	by	other	suppliers,	both	directly	through	attempts	to	impose	contractual	
limitations	and	indirectly	through	attempts	to	impose	fees.	In	decisions	involving	
Tri-State	and	Delta	Montrose	Electric	Association,	the	Federal	Energy	Regulatory	
Commission	has	found	these	attempts	to	be	in	violation	of	the	Public	Utilities	
Regulatory	Policy	Act,	which	actually	requires	a	coop	to	purchase	such	electricity,	
and	has	blocked	Tri-State	from	preventing	those	purchases.	CC4CA	supports	the	
ability	of	electric	cooperatives	to	purchase	non-polluting	electricity	free	from	these	
or	any	similar	limitations.		
	
11.	Supports	state	legislation	to	incrementally	increase	the	Renewable	Energy	
Standard.	
	
Colorado’s	current	Renewable	Energy	Standard	requires	electricity	providers	to	
obtain	these	minimum	percentages	of	their	power	from	renewable	energy	sources:		

• Investor-owned	utilities:	30	percent	by	2020,	of	which	3	percent	must	come	
from	distributed	energy	resources.		



6	
	

• Large	rural	electric	cooperatives:	20	percent	by	2020.		
• Municipal	utilities	and	small	rural	electric	cooperatives:	10	percent	by	2020.		

	
This	standard	has	been	one	of	the	most	effective	state	policies	in	facilitating	the	
transition	from	carbon-intensive	fossil	fuel	electricity	sources	to	renewable	sources,	
and	CC4CA	supports	giving	consideration	to	incrementally	increasing	the	standard	
for	all	three	types	of	utilities.		
	
12.	Supports	state	legislation	to	require	the	Public	Utilities	Commission	to	
consider	all	environmental	and	health	costs	of	the	fuels	used	by	investor-
owned	utilities	to	generate	electricity.	
	
Electric	utilities	should	be	required	to	include	the	costs	of	carbon	pollution	when	
developing	their	long-term	integrated	resource	plans,	as	would	have	been	required	
under	a	bill	considered	in	the	2016	session	of	the	Colorado	General	Assembly.	The	
“social	cost	of	carbon”	is	the	economic	cost	of	the	impacts	of	carbon	pollution,	which	
can	be	used	to	compare	the	overall	costs	and	benefits	of	alternative	energy	sources.	
Legislation	requiring	utilities	to	generate	at	least	one	scenario	identifying	the	
impacts	of	carbon	pollution	would	enable	utilities,	regulators,	ratepayers,	and	
others	to	better	understand	the	true	costs	of	different	choices	for	electricity	
generation.		
	
13.	Supports	grid	modernization	policies	and	funding	that	support	distributed	
generation,	energy	storage,	high	levels	of	renewable	energy	generation	
(distributed	and	utility-scale),	and	appropriate	technologies.	
	
A	wide	array	of	grid	modernization	policies	and	actions	are	available	to	utilities	that	
can	reduce	energy	consumption,	better	align	availability	of	electricity	to	demand,	
expand	renewable	energy	generation,	and	collectively	reduce	carbon	pollution	from	
the	power	generation	sector	(while	also	improving	reliability	and	reducing	cost).	
CC4CA	supports	policies	and	funding	that	result	in	these	types	of	grid	
modernization	efforts	in	Colorado.	
	
Net	metering	is	one	example	of	a	policy	structure	that	can	result	in	reduced	
greenhouse	gas	emissions,	greater	reliability	for	individual	energy	users	and	across	
the	grid,	improved	grid	resilience,	and	reduced	cost	for	both	utilities	and	electricity	
consumers.	Colorado’s	current	net	metering	policies	allow	electric	customers	who	
invest	in	distributed	energy	technologies	to	net	their	solar	energy	production	
against	their	consumption.	Available	in	at	least	40	states,	this	simple	billing	
arrangement	is	one	of	the	most	important	policies	for	encouraging	rooftop	solar	and	
other	on-site	clean	energy	options.	Net	metering	also	helps	foster	the	voluntary	
reduction	of	heat-trapping	emissions,	contributes	to	the	reliability	of	the	electricity	
supply	and	distribution	systems,	supports	the	residential	and	small-commercial	
renewable	energy	industry,	and	helps	to	more	quickly	replace	coal-fired	power	
plants	with	cleaner	sources	of	energy.	In	recent	years	utilities	have	sought	approval	



7	
	

from	regulatory	bodies	in	many	states	to	either	abandon	or	reduce	net	metering	
rates.	
	
CC4CA	supports	grid	modernization	policies	like	these	and	opposes	efforts	to	
weaken	or	eliminate	them	where	they	already	exist.		
	

Energy	Efficiency	
	
14.	Supports	legislative,	regulatory,	and	administrative	actions	for	electric	
utilities	to	achieve	energy	efficiency	savings	of	2	percent	per	year	beyond	
2020,	building	on	the	2020	goal	established	by	Governor	Hickenlooper	
through	executive	order.	Municipal	and	cooperative	utilities	should	also	adopt	
and	achieve	similar	efficiency	targets.	
	
In	the	2017	session	of	the	Colorado	General	Assembly,	CC4CA	supported	HB	17-
1227,	which	was	enacted	to	extend	an	existing	law	requiring	regulated	utilities	to	
achieve	electricity	savings	of	five	percent	of	retail	sales	from	2018–2028.	Colorado	
utilities	have	already	demonstrated	that	they	can	readily	exceed	this	modest	goal.	
The	Southwest	Energy	Efficiency	Project	reports	that	from	2008–16	Xcel	Energy	and	
Black	Hills	Energy	achieved	ten	percent	savings,	well	over	one	percent	per	year,	
with	an	overall	benefit-to-cost	ratio	of	more	than	two-to-one.	Colorado	households	
and	businesses	saved	nearly	$1.4	billion	net	over	that	time	period.	Governor	
Hickenlooper’s	Executive	Order	D	2017-015	set	a	new	goal	to	achieve	two	percent	
per	year	energy	efficiency	by	2020,	which	is	readily	achievable	and	should	be	
extended	beyond	that	date.		
	
15.	Supports	ongoing	and	sustainable	funding	for	the	Weatherization	
Assistance	Program.	
	
Low-income	and	vulnerable	households	spend	a	disproportionately	large	
percentage	of	their	income	on	energy	utility	bills.	The	federal	Weatherization	
Assistance	Program	was	created	in	1976	to	address	this	problem.	Administered	
here	by	the	Colorado	Energy	Office,	WAP	provides	funding	to	locally	administered	
home	weatherization	programs	to	provide	free	weatherization	services	to	
Colorado’s	low-income	residents	in	order	to	improve	the	energy	efficiency	of	their	
homes.	Colorado	supplements	its	annual	federal	WAP	allocation	with	state	
severance	tax	dollars,	both	of	which	can	be	volatile	sources	of	revenue.	A	stable	
revenue	stream	for	Colorado’s	eight	WAP	programs	would	support	the	dual	goals	of	
assisting	families	in	reducing	their	energy	bills	while	promoting	safe,	comfortable,	
and	energy-efficient	housing.		
	



8	
	

16.	Supports	state	enabling	legislation	to	provide	counties	and	statutory	cities	
and	towns	with	the	same	authority	held	by	home	rule	cities	to	implement	local	
energy	conservation	policies	and	programs.	
	
Unlike	their	home	rule	municipal	peers,	Colorado	counties	and	statutory	cities	and	
towns	in	many	cases	lack	authority	to	adopt	and	implement	energy	conservation	
policies	and	programs.	For	example,	only	Colorado	home	rule	cities	have	statutory	
authorization	to	enact	energy	conservation	ordinances	despite	how	effective	they	
are	for	improving	the	energy	efficiency	and	performance	of	existing	residential	and	
commercial	buildings.	Enabling	legislation	is	needed	to	provide	Colorado’s	counties	
and	statutory	cities	and	towns	with	the	authority	necessary	to	enact	policies	and	
programs	that	can	support	and	promote	energy	conservation	within	their	
jurisdictions.		
	

Transportation	
	
17.	Supports	Colorado’s	adoption	of	motor	vehicle	emission	standards,	
including	requirements	for	low-emission	and	zero-emission	vehicles,	and	
collaborative	efforts	for	effective	implementation,	that	are	equal	to	or	exceed	
those	already	adopted	by	California.	
	
The	federal	Clean	Air	Act	provides	authority	for	California	to	adopt	its	own	stringent	
emissions	standards	for	new	motor	vehicles	and	for	other	states	to	adopt	the	
California	standards.	Twelve	states	plus	Washington,	D.C.	have	adopted	California’s	
basic	emission	standards.	These	states	represent	about	35	percent	of	the	nation’s	
population	and	the	same	share	of	new	motor	vehicle	sales.	Nine	of	these	states	have	
also	adopted	the	additional	California	standards	requiring	manufacturers	to	achieve	
specified	sales	of	zero	tailpipe-emission	vehicles	(i.e.,	battery-only	electric	vehicles).		
	
California’s	vehicle	standards	have	enjoyed	unusual	bipartisan	support,	including	
among	Colorado’s	congressional	delegation,	both	as	an	example	of	cooperative	
federalism	among	federal	and	state	governments	and	as	important	for	protecting	
the	climate.	A	June	2017	letter	to	the	Administrator	of	the	U.S.	Environmental	
Protection	Agency	supporting	continuation	of	the	EPA	waivers	under	the	Clean	Air	
Act	for	the	California	standards	was	signed	by	Rep.	Mike	Coffman,	Republican	of	
Colorado,	and	Rep.	Jared	Polis,	Democrat	of	Colorado,	along	with	other	Members	of	
Congress	from	both	parties.		
	
In	recent	years,	the	basic	California	standards	have	been	synchronized	with	federal	
emission	and	fuel	efficiency	standards.	However,	the	Trump	administration	is	now	
planning	to	weaken	the	federal	standards,	which	would	dramatically	undermine	
Colorado’s	efforts	to	meet	our	statewide	carbon	pollution	goals.	Reducing	emissions	
from	the	transportation	sector,	which	has	become	the	sector	responsible	for	the	
largest	share	of	greenhouse	gases,	has	to	be	a	centerpiece	of	climate	action	in	the	
state.		
	



9	
	

At	the	urging	of	a	wide	range	of	interests	across	the	state,	including	CC4CA,	
Governor	Hickenlooper’s	June	2018	executive	order	(B	2018	006)	directs	the	
Colorado	Department	of	Public	Health	and	Environment	to	develop	an	advanced	
clean	car	standards	rule	and	formally	propose	adoption	of	this	rule	by	the	Colorado	
Air	Quality	Control	Commission.	CC4CA	supports	Colorado	adopting	the	California	
vehicle	standards,	including	the	so-called	ZEV	(zero-emissions	vehicle)	standards,	
and	CC4CA	supports	the	kinds	of	flexible	approaches	to	implementing	the	ZEV	
standard	here	in	Colorado	that	we	have	seen	adopted	in	other	ZEV	states. 
	
18.	Supports	implementation	of	the	Colorado	Electric	Vehicle	Plan,	including	
new	state	government	actions	to	accelerate	the	purchase	and	use	of	zero	
emission	vehicles.	
	
Nationally,	transportation	has	become	the	sector	responsible	for	the	most	carbon	
pollution.	Colorado’s	recent	population	growth	has	led	to	a	commensurate	increase	
in	vehicle	miles	traveled,	which	has	overtaken	the	emissions	reductions	made	
possible	through	the	increasing	fuel	efficiency	of	the	statewide	vehicle	fleet.	
Electrification	of	light-	and	heavy-duty	vehicles,	as	well	as	other	emerging	zero-
emissions	technologies,	holds	perhaps	the	greatest	promise	for	emissions	
reductions	in	this	sector.	CC4CA	supports	legislative,	regulatory,	and	administrative	
action	to	increase	the	adoption	of	electric	vehicles	by	investing	in	electric	vehicle	
charging	stations,	educating	customers	about	EVs,	and	providing	customer	
incentives.	CC4CA	also	supports	the	current	plan	to	commit	a	portion	of	Colorado’s	
share	of	the	Volkswagen	emissions	control	violations	settlement	to	the	construction	
of	electric	vehicle	charging	infrastructure	across	Colorado,	and	adoption	of	the	
California	motor	vehicle	emission	standards	(see	#17	above),	including	their	
provisions	on	sales	of	zero-emission	vehicles.	
	

Fossil	Fuel	Extraction	Activities		
	
19.	Supports	legislative,	administrative,	and	regulatory	actions	to	expand	the	
monitoring	of	and	reduce	the	full	life	cycle	emissions	from	fossil	fuel	
extractive	industry	activities.	
	
The	mining	and	extraction	of	fossil	fuels	can	result	in	significant	levels	of	carbon	
pollution.	One	primary	culprit	is	methane.	Methane	has	a	shorter-lived	but	much	
more	potent	heat-trapping	effect	than	carbon	dioxide;	thus,	reducing	methane	
emissions	is	a	highly	effective	way	to	buy	time	to	implement	more	comprehensive	
actions	to	reduce	industry-wide	carbon	dioxide	emissions.	As	one	example,	in	2014	
Colorado	adopted	rules	to	limit	methane	emissions	from	oil	and	gas	operations	by	
requiring	oil	and	gas	companies	to	find	and	fix	methane	leaks	in	its	extraction	and	
delivery	infrastructure.	The	rules	also	require	industry	to	capture	methane	and	
volatile	organic	compounds,	both	of	which	contribute	to	ground-level	ozone	
pollution.	
	



10	
	

CC4CA	supports	legislative,	administrative,	and	regulatory	actions	like	these	to	
reduce	greenhouse	gas	emissions	throughout	the	entire	extraction	and	
transportation	processes	involving	raw	fossil	fuels.	CC4CA	also	supports	expanded	
monitoring	of	the	full	life	cycle	emissions	from	these	activities.	
	

Solid	Waste	Reduction	
	
20.	Supports	adoption	and	implementation	of	a	plan	by	the	Colorado	
Department	of	Public	Health	and	Environment	to	achieve	the	statewide	waste	
diversion	goals	established	by	the	Solid	and	Hazardous	Waste	Commission.	
	 	
Recycling	and	composting	reduce	emissions	of	both	methane	and	carbon	dioxide.	
Colorado	has	a	low	solid	waste	diversion	rate	of	19	percent,	compared	with	the	
national	average	of	34	percent.	In	August	2017,	the	Colorado	Solid	and	Hazardous	
Waste	Commission	adopted	new	statewide	and	regional	municipal	solid	waste	
diversion	goals,	including	separate	goals	for	11	Front	Range	counties	and	for	the	
remainder	of	the	state	for	the	years	2021,	2026,	and	2036.	Statewide,	the	goal	is	to	
increase	the	diversion	rate	to	45	percent	by	2036.	CC4CA	supports	CDPHE’s	efforts	
to	increase	solid	waste	diversion	rates. 
	

General	
	
21.	Supports	the	protections	and	authorities	currently	provided	under	
environmental	laws	like	the	Clean	Air	Act	and	the	Clean	Water	Act.	
	
Protecting	Colorado’s	air,	water,	and	land	is	vital	to	its	environment,	economy,	and	
people.	The	protections	and	authorities	afforded	by	landmark	federal	laws	such	as	
the	Clean	Air	Act	and	Clean	Water	Act	are	foundational	to	the	fight	against	climate	
change.	For	example,	the	2007	ruling	by	the	U.S.	Supreme	Court	that	heat	trapping	
emissions	are	air	pollutants	and	thus	subject	to	regulation	under	the	Clean	Air	Act,	
and	the	subsequent	2009	U.S.	Environmental	Protection	Agency	endangerment	
finding	that	indeed,	heat	trapping	emissions	present	a	danger	to	public	health,	
obligate	our	federal	government	to	utilize	the	protections	provided	by	the	Clean	Air	
Act	to	take	action	to	limit	emissions.	Local	governments	rely	on	these	protections	
and	can	be	critical	allies	in	this	effort,	as	scores	of	communities	across	Colorado	
already	are	implementing	a	broad	array	of	initiatives	to	advance	climate	protection	
at	the	local	level,	and	often	doing	so	in	collaboration	with	the	state	and	federal	
governments.	But	we	know	more	must	be	done.	CC4CA	communities	support	the	
protections	and	authorities	provided	under	the	body	of	existing	environmental	law,	
including	the	Clean	Air	Act	and	Clean	Water	Act,	and	will	strongly	oppose	legislative,	
regulatory,	and	other	efforts	to	roll	back	or	diminish	them.	
	



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Manager’s Report 
 



RIDGWAY PLANNING COMMISSION  
AGENDA  

Tuesday, April 30th, 2019 
Regular Meeting; 5:30 pm 

Ridgway Community Center  
201 North Railroad Street, Ridgway, Colorado 

 
 
ROLL CALL:  Chairperson: Doug Canright, Commissioners: Tessa Cheek, John Clark, Thomas Emilson, 

Larry Falk, Bill Liske, and Jennifer Nelson 
 
 
 
GENERAL BUSINESS:  

 
1. Master Plan Adoption Recommended adoption to Town Council  

2. Dark skies update Staff is working on a draft ordinance and hopes to bring it to the Planning 
Commission next month after review from IDA 

3. Informal discussion for development of Block 28, Lots 16-20, Matthew McIsaac Planning 
Commission offered feedback and generally supported the  concept  

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

 
 

4. Minutes from the meeting of March 26th, 2019 Approved 

 
ADJOURN  
 


	(01) Agenda
	(02) Consent Agenda
	(03) April 10 tc min
	(04) April 15 special tc min
	(05) Register of Demands
	(06) Agenda Item 8
	(07) Proclamation
	(08) Agenda Item 9
	(09) Delta Housing
	(09a) DHA 2019 Housing Rehabilitation Program Grant Application 2020-2022
	(09b) DHA 2019 Ouray county rpt 2015-19
	(09c) DHA Community Development Plan
	(09d) DHA Letter of Support to DOH

	(10) Agenda Item 11
	(11) Star Saloon sr
	(12) Agenda Item 12
	(13) Master Plan Presentation
	(14) Master Plan
	(15) Agenda Item 13
	(16) USPS Ground Lease and Staff Rpt
	2019.05.03 (USPS ground lease staff report)
	2019.05 (Lease proposed from USPS)

	(17) Agenda Item 14
	(18) Ordinance
	(14a) 2019-04 (2019.05.08 Plastic Bag Ordinance Amend 1)
	(14b) Plastics Forum Feedback Summary
	DOC010
	DOC011


	(19) Agenda Item 15
	(20) Carry Out Bags
	(21) Agenda Item 16
	(22) CC4CA Reso and Policy (combo)
	(16a) 19-09 (2019.05.08 (Ridgway CC4CA Resolution)
	(16b) CC4CA 2018-2019 Policy Agenda

	(23) Agenda Item Mgr Rpt
	(24) PC Agenda



